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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders 

 

On June 5
th 
2006 Rey listed on the stock exchange after raising $2 million pre-IPO and $3.3 million in an 

issue of securities to the public to fulfil the Australian Stock Exchange requirements for admission. 

Prior to listing the Company was actively exploring it’s main projects Fenix in Chile and Liveringa in Western 
Australia. The Liveringa project is currently the subject of native title negotiations and the Kimberley Lands 
Council has requested that the Company resolve these issues prior to any further exploration taking place. 
The Company has agreed to this request. 

 

Chile 

The results from the Fenix project in Chile continue to improve. Geological mapping has extended the Cerro 
Cobre area to over 3 sqm of indicated surface mineralisation. This is a north easterly extension to the 
mineralisation defined by surface trenching and sampling which shows copper oxides at the surface  and IP 
geophysics that indicates the potential for sulphides at depth. Results of the first drilling campaign at zone 3 
should be complete by the time of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

Business Development 

As foreshadowed in the Company’s  Prospectus, evaluations of a number of advanced and producing coal 
projects have been undertaken in  China. The Company is seeking a project with JORC standard resources 
of coking coal, and in conjunction with RBC Capital Markets, its Corporate advisers and the principals of 
Resource Capital Funds, early stage investors, it will continue to seek projects with the requisite qualities. 

Mr Bahamondes continues to seek an advanced project in South America and will be paid a finder’s fee of 
$50,000 should the Company acquire a project introduced by him as part of the Company’s contractual 
arrangements. 

 

Prospects 

The Company’s operations are detailed in the Managing Director’s report however shareholders should be 
pleased at the progress to date in both Western Australia and Chile. There is significant interest in the coal 
project located in the Canning Basin. This is coming both from the possibility of discovering large resources 
of export quality coal and should the coal not prove of the requisite quality then the ability to convert the coal 
into coal gas in-situ and thence to diesel, such as occurs in South Africa and other parts of the world is a 
distinct possibility. The Liveringa project is believed to contain very extensive coal resources with large 
energy values. 

In South America the suite of mineral properties assembled by Mr Bahamondes and his team continue to 
provide exciting results. As discussed above we are optimistic of proving a mineable resource at Fenix in the 
near term and joint venture interest over the Company’s other properties will ensure exploration dollars are 
spent to the Company’s and shareholders advantage. 

 

Board 

I would like to thank all the members of the Board for their contributions. Mr. Humphris’ expertise in 
Corporate matters proved invaluable in the finalisation of the prospectus. Dr Gower and Mr Jagatramka have 
only recently joined the company and shareholders should be pleased that the Company has been able to 
attract persons of such calibre. Dr Preston’s technical skills enable the Company to quickly identify the areas 
of interest in its projects and his contribution will enable the company to quickly capitalize on any discovery.  
Mr Bahamondes’ capable management of our Chilean and Peruvian exploration properties provides a small 
company as ours with strong competitive advantages in exploration and project generation 

 

Employees 

I would like to thank our past employees for their perseverance and contribution to the IPO and welcome Mr 
Rolando Tinoco to the Company. As Peruvian his knowledge of Spanish and South American financial 
matters will enable the Company to closely control it’s activities there. 

 

Julian Ludowici 

Chairman 
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations 

 

Rey’s activities are concentrated on the exploration and development of its mineral tenements – coal 
tenements in Western Australia, copper properties in Chile and gold prospects in Peru.  The exploration 
tenements are held 100% by Rey Group and are located in areas with a history of exploration activity and 
mineral production.  

 

During 2005 and early 2006, the company raised a total of $5.3 million resulting in listing on the ASX on 5 
June 2006. Several milestones were reached including: consolidation and prioritisation of its exploration 
tenement holdings in Australia and South America, discovery of several zones of potentially economic copper 
mineralisation at the Fenix Project, establishment of a Company operations base in the major mining centre 
of Copiápo in Chile, completion of the Stage 1 drilling programme at the Liveringa coal project in Western 
Australia, and streamlining its management and administration functions in Australia and Chile. 

 

Rey’s immediate exploration priorities are to further add value to the potentially large Liveringa coal resource 
in Western Australia through drilling and joint venture, and further enhance the Fenix copper project in Chile, 
where multiple drilling targets have been defined over a large area. Depending on the outcome of the 
exploration work on key projects including drilling over the next three months, Rey may elect to proceed to 
pre-feasibility studies, relinquish tenements, or seek to develop existing or acquire new mineable resources 
either alone or in conjunction with joint venture partners. The Company’s exploration strategy of having at 
least one project in production within 18-24 months and securing farm-out arrangements for two projects by 
the end of 2006 is firmly on track.  

 

Chile Projects 

Rey’s five projects are located within 80 km of the major mining centre of Copiapó City 700 km north of 
Santiago on the edge of the Atacama Desert. Most of the exploration work to date has been carried out at the 
Fenix Project which has a history of small-scale mining. 
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Fenix Project (Rey 100%) 

The Fenix copper-molybdenum prospect is Rey’s primary focus in South America. During the year tenement 
area owned increased from 53km

2
 to 64km

2 
with several mineralised

 
blocks being converted from exploration 

licence to mining licence status. The project is located 60km south of Copiapó and 40km south of the large 
Candelaria copper mine, controlled by Phelps Dodge.  Directors believe that the Fenix deposit has never 
been drilled although the general area is punctuated by numerous small shallow non-operating mines which 
lie along well defined north-northeast trending anticlinal structures. The mineralisation is of epithermal type, 
with the shallow structures consisting of chalcocite-bornite-argentite-copper oxides with minor bornite-
chalcopyrite-pyrite and good potential for economic mineralisation at depth. Early in the year, Rey identified 
more than 40 copper-molybdenum outcrops with assay results ranging from 0.01% to 17.2% copper and up 
to 40ppm molybdenum. Two styles of mineralisation are present: north-south striking veins and, strata bound 
volcanic breccias which host higher grade mineralisation. These are known as “mantos” zones. 

 

During the year 40 trenches were dug with a drag shovel over a length of 3.2 km to open trenches and 247 
samples of the outcrops of the veins were collected and analysed for total copper, soluble copper, silver and 
molybdenum. The results are summarised below: 

   

Some characteristics of each type of Mineralisation: 

 

Structure Zone Length (km) Width (m) Average Cu-% No Samples  

Three Vein 1 3.7 1.0 to 25.0 0.15 29 

Esmeralda Vein 1 4.7 1.0 to 10.0 0.25 18 

Split Esm. Vein 1 1.4 1.0 to 1.5 0.01 01 

La Difunta Vein 1 4.3 1.0 to 25.0 0.75 21 

Split 4E La D. V. 1 1.5 1.0 to 8.0 0.99 02 

Split 2E La D.V 1 1.3 0.5 to 2.0 0.34 04 

Split 3E La D.V. 1 0.8 0.5 to 2.0 0.78 02 

Esperanza Vein 2 1.5 1.0 to 5.0 0.88 03 

Lula Vein 2 1.5 0.5 to 3.0 0.96 05 

Naty Vein 2 2.1 1.0 to 4.0 0.80 03 

Libor Vein 2 2.0 2.0 to 30.0 0.94 02 

Mantos Zone 3 ----- 250x300 1.15 10 

Matilda Zone 4 ----- 100x60 0.17 14 

Copper Hill – 
Mantos 

5 ----- 1000x300 1.71 20 

 

During the June Quarter, a geophysical induced polarization (IP) survey was completed over 12 east-west 
lines covering mapped veins and the Zone 3 mantos area, with the purpose of outlining sub-surface 
mineralisation at depth and to define drilling targets. Three important anomalies were defined over the veins 
and central mantos Zone 3. The highest chargeability values were measured over the mantos Zone 3 area 
which indicates the possibility of sulphides at depth. During August more detailed IP and magnetic lines 
were surveyed in Zone 3, and the anomalous area has been extended to 1km by 2km. Detailed geologic and 
topographic mapping at 1:5,000 scale was completed and drilling targets accurately defined. Construction of 
the drill pads is almost complete and the initial 1,500 metre drilling programme commenced on 12

th
 October 

with assay results expected in November and the initial 1,500 metre drilling programme commenced on 12th 
October with assay results expected in November. 
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FENIX PROJECT – IP Line 9.200 Showing Anomalous “Mantos” Zone 3 Response (pink-mauve colour) 
indicating Possible High Grade Sulphide Mineralisation 

 

 

 

A new mantos area was discovered in May 2006 to the northeast of the Zone 3 area. This area named 
Copper Hill (Cerro Cobre) could be related at depth, but is separated on the surface by erosion. The 
common characteristics of both zones are: the host rock (volcanic breccias); the fine-grained andesite 
(sealer layer) and; the vein/veinlet pathways.  This zone is the most interesting area discovered within the 
Fenix tenements to date, in terms of ore potential and copper grades. 

 

The outcrops of this new Zone 5 are distributed over an area of 1,000m by 300m. The mineralisation is 
copper oxides, with atacamite, malachite, crisocole, chalcocite and calcite. This zone is in the first stage of 
exploration, with 20 samples from the outcrops being analysed: 
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Sample N Width (m) Zone Vein / Mantos Cu tot.-% Cu sol-ppm-% Ag-ppm 

8227 1.80x0.20 5  Piso 1.34% 1.19% 4.8 

8228 1.30x0.20 5  Ivan 3.81% 3.80% 4.4 

8229 5.0x0.20 5 Ivan 2.46% 2.44% 4.8 

8230 1.80x0.20 5  Ivan 2.61% 2.60% 70.2 

8232 6x0.20 5 Copper Hill 1.76% 1.67% <0,2 

8233 5x0.20 5 Copper Hill 1.45% 1.35% <0,2 

8234 3x0.20 5 Copper Hill 0.31% 2820 0.4 

8235 5x0.20 5 Copper Hill 3.02% 3.00% 3.8 

8236 5x0.20 5 Copper Hill 1.17% 1.13% 2.6 

8237 7.5x4 5 Copper Hill 3.06% 3.02% 1.0 

8238 7x4 5 Copper Hill 1.98% 1.90% 1.8 

8239 3.5x0.20 5 Copper Hill 2.11% 1.97% 6.4 

8240 3x0.20 5 Copper Hill 2.10% 2.06% 8.6 

8241 1.0x0.20 5 Copper Hill 2.23% 2.21% 11.4 

8242 3.5x0.20 5 Copper Hill 1.20% 1.01% 6.6 

8243 6.5x0.20 5 Copper Hill 1.05% 1.00% 9.6 

8244 6x0.50 5 Copper Hill 2.22% 2.19% 9.4 

8245 2.5x0.5 5 Copper Hill 0.23% 1950 16.0 

8246 1.5x0.5 5 Copper Hill 0.05% 390 1.8 

8247 5x5 5 Copper Hill 0.05% 370 1.0 

Average:       1.71%     

      Analysis: Geolaquim Ltda (ISO 9001:2000) 

 

Further detailed mapping, sampling and geophysics will continue at Copper Hill and the drill rig will be 
moved there after the completion of the Zone 3 drilling in November.  

 

If the results from the Fenix drilling are positive, Rey will move quickly to define a measured resource and 
initiate a bankable feasibility study in 2007. The Company’s goal is to commence copper production from 
near surface oxide and intermediate mineralisation within 2 years.  
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Looking to the SE at the Copper Hill Mantos Zone 5, showing the vein pathway and fine-   
grained andesite host rock 

 

 

 
  Narrow vein pathways in breccias at Copper Hill 
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El Timón Project (Rey 100%) 

In April 2006, Rey geologists spent two days on the field, checking the outcrops of the Timón prospect. This 
project lies in an area has not seen previous mining activity and is located about 70 km southeast of 
Copiapó City and lies between 2,100 and 3,500 metres above sea level in the Andean foothills. The area is 
recognised as a hydrothermal alteration zone associated with an early Tertiary intrusive belt. Rey 
Investments Chile Ltda, is the owner of 8 blocks covering 1,800 hectares of exploration claims (pedimentos), 
and during the year increased its holding by a further 800 hectares. 

   

In the June Quarter, Rey took 11 samples from the outcrops that cover about 80% of the property. These 
were sent to ALS Chemex and were assayed for gold plus 32 elements: 

  

 

SAMPLE Au-ppm Ag-ppm 
Cu-
ppm Mo-ppm As-ppm 

Sb-
ppm 

Hg-
ppm 

Te-
ppm 

Pb-
ppm Zn-ppm 

4000 0.009 <0.5 79.9 36.3 11.2 0.31 0.05 0.84 49.6 6 

4001 <0.005 <0.5 19.8 5.37 13.2 0.77 0.02 0.37 18.2 3 

4002 0.006 <0.5 142 13.4 85.5 2.4 0.13 2.86 130.5 18 

4003 0.087 32.3 >10000 15.2 67.4 12.45 0.1 6.77 636 778 

4004 0.006 11.4 5670 49.5 7.3 1.41 0.09 0.17 27.7 322 

4005 <0.005 0.7 151 53.5 13.3 9.2 0.23 0.08 19.1 33 

4006 <0.005 <0.5 25 57.3 10.9 3.92 0.03 0.2 14.5 5 

4007 <0.005 <0.5 24.2 22.6 4.2 0.68 0.04 <0.05 6.8 2 

4008 <0.005 <0.5 22.5 102 15 1.08 0.06 <0.05 8.6 4 

4009 <0.005 <0.5 25.2 61.8 11.8 4.23 0.01 1.82 8.6 3 

4010 <0.005 <0.5 21 4.36 16.2 0.68 0.01 1.05 36.1 8 

 

There is not a lot of evidence of gold anomalies, and the mercury and arsenic values are low. The 
molybdenum is a small anomaly but is not clear. Samples 4003 and 4004 came from the veinlets located 
outside of the principal alteration zone, in the propilitic volcanic rocks. This is the reason that they are 
anomalous in copper. Checking the results of the grades, the prospect seems closer in style to porphyry 
copper-gold rather than an epithermal gold prospect. 

 

The El Timón prospect style is a porphyry copper and gold target of early Eocene age, covering an area of 
alteration visible over 8 km by 3 km. The alteration system is very complex  with three separated styles of 
alteration. The recent visit to the prospect, indicates that El Timón comprises a strong altered and leached 
siliceous zone with mainly quartz-sericite alteration, surrounded by an intensive argilization, with the 
presence of kaolinite, alunite and others argils. It seems that intensive alteration was hosted within a great 
structural trend, surrounded by volcanic and Tertiary intrusives with propilitic alteration. The relation between 
the alteration  system and the intrusives is not clear, but the alteration zone has high permeability, with 
presence of pyrite-like boxworks, jarosite, goethite and heamatite. 

 

Rey intends to carry out a detailed understanding of the phases, temperatures and the stages of alteration. 
To arrive to this objective further mapping and sampling of the outcrops in the various altered zones is 
required.  

 

A budget of US$36,000 has been allocated for the December Quarter 2006. 
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Humitos Gold-Copper Project (Rey 100%) 

 

The Humitos prospect is located  75 km north of Copiapó, near the historic gold mining town of Inca de Oro. 
During the year Rey increased the size of the property from 3,000 to 4,200 hectares and Codelco Chile 
discovered a major porphyry copper-gold deposit immediately to the north. Rey’s exploration tenements are 
surrounded by tenements owned by major mining companies including: Codelco, Phelps Dodge, Coemin 
and Antofagasta Minerals. 

 

Limited geological reconnaissance and geochemical sampling by Rey at Humitos has revealed that the area 
comprises a strongly altered and leached siliceous core, which is a broad geomorphological feature, and 
could be related to a copper porphyry deposit. But it has not undergone potassic alteration and therefore has 
been subject to the supergene enrichment, showing evidence of relict pyrite boxworks, high permeability 
(through lithology, structure and composition) and superficial oxygenated water activity (through vesicular 
appearance). Humito is surrounded by an extensive nearby belt of Cu-Au and Ag veins, mantle and 
tourmaline breccias, with abundant scattering of magnetite in a volcanic rock ground mass and regions with 
intensive epidotisation. A pyritic halo surrounds all mineralised bodies, which in part carries gold. 

No exploration was carried out during the June Quarter, and Rey is currently talking with potential joint 
venture partners for participation in the project. Expenditure of US$35,000 involving mapping, sampling and 
geophysics is planned for the December Quarter 2006. 

 

Peru Projects 

 

No exploration work was carried out on Rey’s two Peruvian gold properties during the June Quarter, 
however, the company is seeking more advanced project opportunities in the same area. 
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Australian Projects 

Liveringa Coal Project (Rey 100%) 

 

In October 2005 the Stage 1 drilling programme at Liveringa was completed and a 12-15 metre coal section 
was intersected in two holes (P01 at 197.5m depth and P10 at 285.0 m), with P01 being fully cored. Seam 
thickness and depth was found to correlate with seismic modelling. The core was tested for coal seam gas, 
and found to be low in gas content (<0.2m

3
 per tonne).  

 

The results of the coal analysis were received in the June Quarter 
and indicate that the coal on the Deep Well Anticline is a high ash 
(40%-50%), sub-bituminous non-coking coal. The coal can be 
upgraded by de-shaling and washing, however, the product yield is 
still low. The coal sampled is of relatively low energy (3,945 kcal/kg) 
but is suitable as a domestic thermal coal with good ash fusion 
characteristics. 

 

From the results of this program it was concluded that the physical 
properties of the coal seam on the Deep Well Anticline appear 
amenable to in-situ gasification or liquefaction processes. These 
are currently being evaluated with potential joint venture partners. 

 

A Stage 2 drilling programme was planned in the June Quarter to 
commence in August-September 2006. This was designed to test 
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for coal quality and potential shallow open cut coal indicated from seismic interpretation in new tenements 
granted away from the Deep Well Anticline. A 6,000 metre shallow drilling programme was designed with  
traverses across selected outcrop zones of the potentially productive Permian Lightjack formation. The 
number of traverses may increase or reduce as circumstances dictate during the programme. Six of the 
proposed traverses will be drilled to investigate three areas where the seismic interpretation indicates that 
the coal measures are thick, i.e. greater than 40 metres.  

 

 

 

2006 Stage 2 Drilling Programme - Proposed Drill Lines 

 

 

Since the granting of 10 new tenements in March 2006 by the WA Department of Industry & Resources 
(DOIR), there are native title issues which have recently emerged which will delay the Stage 2 drilling 
campaign. These leases cover areas where the seismic indicates shallow coal (ELs 04/1515-1524), and are 
adjacent to the 5 leases previously granted (ELs 04/1381-1383, 1385 and 1386), where the Stage 1 
programme was carried out in 2005. 

 

In mid-June the Kimberley Lands Council (KLC) objected to the granting of these tenements and has 
appealed to the National Natïve Title Tribunal (NNTT). Rey is currently in the process of negotiating an 
access agreement with the KLC representing the Traditional Owners and is awaiting a response from the 
NNTT. 
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Canning Basin Gas Project (Rey 100%) 

In early 2005 Rey applied for two petroleum exploration permits 
EP10/04-5 and EP11/04-5 covering almost 10,000 km

2
 in the 

Liveringa area of the Canning Basin. This was done primarily as a 
Western Australian Government requirement to gain future access 
to coal seam methane associated with coal extraction from Rey’s 
Liveringa coal tenements. In June 2005 Rey was granted preferred 
applicant status, with the granting of the titles being subject to a 
native title agreement being reached with the Traditional Owners.  

 

On 5
th
 June 2006 Rey announced that it had signed a letter of 

intent with Arc Energy Limited to enable Arc to participate in 
petroleum exploration in these permits subject to conditions 
precendent. These conditions were not fulfilled and a more 
attractive offer was subsequently received and accepted from 
Gujarat NRE Natural Resources Ltd to farm into the permits. 
Gujarat is an associate of a major shareholder in Rey Resources, 
with a 19.9% interest. 

 

The principal terms of the Agreement are: 

 

i. Once the petroleum exploration permits the subject of the applications are granted Gujarat will pay 
$250,000 and will assume operatorship of the permits;  

ii. Rey will retain rights to any gas recovered from coals together with the utilisation of any coal in any 
gas or liquid conversion process and will have the right to explore for and deal with any coal and 
coal seam gas in the permits subject to compliance with all applicable regulations;  

iii. The interest of the parties in relation to petroleum production will be 90% Gujarat and 10% Rey 
which 10% will be free carried until the Grant of a petroleum production license. Gujarat will have 
the right to re imbursement of 10% of the costs incurred to date from production; 

iv. Gujarat will assume responsibility for meeting the work conditions imposed on the permits by 
Department of Industry and Resources (DOIR). 

 

More recently Rey has investigated the use of coal conversion gas and diesel using both in-situ and mined 
coal. Coal to diesel fuel technologies have been use for many years and are commercially feasible at current 
oil prices. Gujarat has also agreed to provide seismic data and reinterpret existing seismic data so as to be 
suitable for Rey’s coal exploration work.  

 

Directors are of the opinion that the Gujarat Agreement is extremely positive for Rey shareholders. The 
Group brings a wealth of operating experience in coal/energy production which will enable Rey to unlock 
long-term value in a geologically and geographically attractive energy province, while spreading expensive 
exploration risk. 

 

 

Bruce Preston 

Managing Director 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 

Unless disclosed below, all the best practice recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council 

have been applied for the entire financial year ended 30 June 2006. 

 

Board Composition 

The skills, experience and expertise relevant to the position of each director who is in office at the date of 

the annual report and their term of office are detailed in the director’s report. 

The names of independent directors of the company are: 

 Mr. Peter Gower Mr. Alan John Humphris  

When determining whether a non-executive director is independent the director must not fail any of the 

following materiality thresholds: 

— less than 10% of company shares are held by the director and any entity or individual directly or 

indirectly associated with the director; 

— No sales are made to or purchases made from any entity or individual directly or indirectly 

associated with the director; and 

— none of the directors income or the income of an individual or entity directly or indirectly associated 

with the director is derived from a contract with any member of the economic entity other than 

income derived as a director of the entity. 

Independent directors have the right to seek independent professional advice in the furtherance of their 

duties as directors at the company’s expense. Written approval must be obtained from the chairman prior 

to incurring any expense on behalf of the company. 

The names of the members of the nomination committee and their attendance at meetings of the 

committee are detailed in the directors’ report. 

 

Trading Policy 

The company’s policy regarding directors and employees trading in its securities, is set by the finance 

committee. The policy restricts directors and employees from acting on material information until it has 

been released to the market and adequate time has been given for this to be reflected in the security’s 

prices. 

 

Audit Committee 

The names and qualifications of those appointed to the audit committee and their attendance at meetings 

of the committee are included in the directors’ report. 

 

Performance Evaluation 

An annual performance evaluation of the board and all board members will be  conducted by the board 

and facilitated by the Chairman for the financial year ended 30 June 2007. A questionnaire for all board 

members and members of the senior management team will provide feedback on how they thought the 

board had performed. The chairman also speaks to each director individually regarding their role as 

director. The results from the questionnaire will be collated and developed into a series of 

recommendations to improve performance. This will be  presented to the board at which time an action 

plan developed to implement the recommendations and set the performance criteria and goals for the next 

year. 
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Remuneration Policies 

The remuneration policy, which sets the terms and conditions for the chief executive officer and other 

senior executives, was developed by the remuneration committee and was approved by the board. All 

executives receive a base salary and superannuation. The remuneration committee reviews executive 

packages annually by reference to company performance, executive performance, comparable information 

from industry sectors and other listed companies. The performance of executives is measured against 

criteria agreed half yearly which is based on the forecast growth of the shareholders value. The policy is 

designed to attract the highest calibre executives and reward them for performance which results in long-

term growth in shareholder value. 

Executives are also entitled to participate in the employee share and option arrangements. 

The remuneration report is set out on page 20 and form part of the Directors’ report for the financial year 

ended 30 June 2006. 

The board expects that the remuneration structure implemented will result in the company being able to 

attract and retain the best executives to run the economic entity. It will also provide executives with the 

necessary incentives to work to grow long-term shareholder value. The policy complies with the four key 

principles of IFSA Guidance Note 02–16. 

The payment of bonuses, options and other incentive payments are reviewed by the remuneration 

committee annually as part of the review of executive remuneration and a recommendation is put to the 

board for approval. All bonuses, options and incentives must be linked to predetermined performance 

criteria. The board can exercise its discretion in relation to approving incentives, bonuses and options and 

can recommend changes to the committee’s recommendations. Any changes must be justified by 

reference to measurable performance criteria. 

 

Remuneration Committee 

The board as a whole meets as a remuneration committee. The Company is not of sufficient size to 

warrant a separate remuneration committee. Their attendance at meetings of the committee are detailed in 

the directors’ report. 

There are no schemes for retirement benefits other than statutory superannuation for non-executive 

directors. 

 

Board Responsibilities 

The Board of Directors is accountable to shareholders for the performance of the company. The Board 

sets the company’s strategic direction and delegates responsibility for the management of the company to 

the Managing Director. It is intended that the company will evolve to the ASX requirement that all board 

members except the managing director will be non-executive and independent external directors. The 

Company will be managed with the best interests of shareholders in mind which from time to time may 

mean minor non compliance with the Corporate Governance principles as enunciated by the ASX. Where 

any non compliance will be brought to the shareholders attention. The Board will keep shareholders fully 

informed of all major developments affecting the Company’s state of affairs, through announcements to 

the Australian Stock Exchange and media outlets. 

 

The Board strives to create shareholder value by identification of significant areas of business risk, 

implement procedures to manage such risks and to develop policies regarding the establishment and 

maintenance of appropriate ethical standards. To achieve these objectives the board’s functions include: 

• ensure compliance in legal, statutory, and ethical matters; 

• monitoring the business environment; 

• identifying business risk areas; 

• identifying business opportunities; and 

monitoring systems established to ensure prompt and appropriate responses to shareholder complaints and 

enquiries 
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Board Composition 

The Board consists of three non-executive directors and two executive directors being the Chairman and 

Managing Director. Profiles of the directors are set out on pages 17 and 18 of this report. 

 

The Board seeks the approximate mix of expertise and experience to ensure that the independent directors 

have the requisite skills that offer a balance of pragmatism and strategic vision.  
 

Directors are entitled to independent professional advice, after consultation with the Board and Chairman, 

for matters relating to the Company to the benefit of the Company and its shareholders.  

 

The Company’s listing on the Australian Stock Exchange on 5
th
 June 2006 resulted in several board 

changes. 

1. Mr Arun Kumar Jagatramka was appointed to the Board 

2. Dr. Peter Gower was appointed to the Board 

3. Mr. Jose Bahamondes resigned as a Director and became Mr Humphris’ alternate Director 

 

Mr. Bahamondes as the leader of the South American exploration team spends most of his time in Chile and 

Peru and remains a Director of Rey Chile and Rey Peru. 

 

Audit Committee 

The Company has an Audit Committee consisting of two non-executive Directors; Mr. Alan Humphris and 

Dr. Peter Gower. The Audit Committee met twice during the year. 

 

The role of the committee is to undertake the following tasks and where appropriate make recommendations 

to the Board: 

 

• Monitor all aspects of the external audit, the adequacy of accounting procedures, systems controls and 

financial reporting. 

• The review of the annual audit strategy with the external auditors. 

• The review of the half yearly and annual financial statements and Australian Stock Exchange releases. 

• Monitor changes in and compliance with relevant Corporations Act, Accountancy Standards, Listing 

rules and other Statutory requirements. 

• Evaluate the performance of External Auditors. 

• The review of remuneration and compensation arrangements for all directors and senior staff. 

 

Ethical Compliance 

The Board seeks to maintain high standards of integrity and is committed to ensuring its affairs are 

conducted in accordance with the highest standards of ethical behaviour. 

The Board’s policy requires employees to comply with the spirit as well as the letter of all laws and other 

statutory requirements.  Specific actions are taken to ensure employees understand and comply with their 

obligations in such areas as trade practices, occupational health and safety and environmental protection. 

 

Risk Management 

With regard to the financial risk management, if the Company were to import or export goods or services 

then it would hedge significant import commitments with forward exchange contracts. There are no such 

activities taking place. Exploration commitments in South America are costed in US Dollars. These amounts 

are not hedged however should they reach a material cost this policy will be reviewed 

 

The Board has adopted appropriate policies and procedures in areas such as occupational health and 

safety, discrimination, fair trading, product liability and environmental management, and approval of 

significant capital and revenue expenditure. 

Your directors present their report on the company and its controlled entities for the financial year ended 30 

June 2006. 
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            DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

Directors 

The names of directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are: 

 

Mr. Julian Kinnear Ludowici – Chairman 

Qualifications - B. Com 

Age 51 

Appointed a director on 16 February 2004   

Experience: 

Mr. Ludowici was previously the managing director and Chairman of Customers Limited and BeMaX 
Resources NL both successful Australian Listed Companies. He is a Director and member of the Audit 
Committee in the listed Ludowici Ltd, a mid size Australian business that supplies capital equipment and 
industrial consumables to the Australian mining industry. 

 

Mr. Bruce Clement Preston - Managing Director 

Qualifications – BSc ( Hons) PhD 

Age 56 

Appointed a director on 27 July 2004  

Experience: 

Dr. Preston is a geophysicist with over 10 year's experience in mineral exploration and evaluation in 
Australia and the Asia Pacific, followed by 14 years as a mining research analyst/advisor in stockbroking 
and funds management.  He has extensive knowledge of the mining sector and commodity markets   

  

Mr. Alan Humphris 

Qualifications – BSc BEc MA (Laws) Hons (UK) FCPA 

Age 65 

Appointed a director on 27 July 2004  

Experience: 

Alan Humphris is an investment banker with more than 25 years experience in Australia and offshore 
markets specializing in corporate finance and advisory services.  Previously he was an Executive Director of 
Hambros Australia Limited and Head of Hambros Corporate Finance, and earlier he was a Director of J P 
Morgan Australia Limited. 

Alan Humphris has had significant experience in the resources sector in both advisory and prior non-
executive director roles 

Special Responsibilities: Audit Committee 

 

Sri Arun Jagatramka 

Qualifications – Chartered Accountant 

Age 44 

Appointed a director on 5th June 2006  

Experience: 

Mr. Jagatramka is a qualified Chartered Accountant with All India 1st rank. He has more than 15 years of 
experience in Tax Consultancy and Merchant Banking activity. He has been managing the affairs of Gujarat 
NRE Coke Ltd. since March 1997. Under his leadership, the production capacity of Gujarat NRE Coke Ltd 
has been expanded to make it the largest non-captive Low Ash Metallurgical Coke manufacturer in India. 
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Dr. Peter Gower 

Qualifications – PH.D FGS 

Age 58 

Appointed a director on 5th June 2006  

Experience: 

Peter Gower is a geologist with over 30 years experience in geology and corporate management, and holds 
a PhD in geology from the University of Liverpool. His subsequent career in the mining industry includes 
senior exploration positions in Australia, USA and Africa, working for various subsidiaries of Billiton (most 
recently Billiton International Services Ltd) and the Royal Dutch / Shell Group of Companies where he was 
director responsible for marketing the Group's nickel production to customers around the world. Dr Gower is 
also a non-executive director of Mithril Resources Ltd and Minotour Resources Ltd. 

 

Mr. Jose Agustin Bahamondes  

Qualifications – Dip Mech Eng 

Age 59 

Appointed a director on 27 July 2004 –and alternate to Mr. AJ Humphris on 5th June 2006 

Experience: 

Mr. Bahamondes is a Chilean-Australian engineer with more than 30 years of project and mining experience 
in Australia, Chile and Peru. Mr Bahamondes assembled the South American properties acquired by Rey 
and manages the exploration team in  Chile and Peru.  

 

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise 

stated. 

 

Company Secretary 

Mr. Julian Kinnear Ludowici and Mr John Booth held the position of joint company secretary at the end of the 

financial year. Mr Booth has since resigned as Joint Company Secretary. Refer to director information for Mr 

Ludowici qualification and experience. 

 

Principal Activities 

The principal activities of the economic entity during the financial year were: 

• Resources exploration and mineral project evaluation. 

 

Operating Results 

The consolidated loss of the economic entity for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to 

$993,891. 

No significant changes in the economic entity’s state of affairs occurred during the financial year. 

 

Dividend Paid or Recommended 

No dividends has been declared or paid during the financial year. 

 

Financial Position 

The net assets of the economic entity have increased by $1,265,086 from 30 June 2005 to $4,524,467 in 

2006. This increase has largely resulted from the economic entity completed its Initial Public Offering( IPO) 

which result  in the receipt of $3,302,709. 
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Significant Changes in State of Affairs 

The following significant changes in the state of affairs of the parent entity occurred during the financial year: 

On 16 May 2006 the economic entity completed its Initial Public Offering(IPO) which raised $3,302,709 to 

provide working capital for further exploration of mining tenements. 

 

After Balance Date Events 

• On 20 August 2006 1,000,000 options were issued to Dr. Gower. On  16 August 2006,  550,000 options 

were issued to The Company’s Chilean Exploration staff.  

• On 26
th
 September 2006 the Company entered into a binding agreement with Gujarat NRE Resources 

Ltd. to explore the Company’s oil tenements as detailed in the Managing Director’s report 

 

Adoption of Australian Equivalents to IFRS 

As a result of the introduction of Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 

(AIFRS), the company’s financial report has been prepared in accordance with those Standards. A 

reconciliation of adjustments arising on the transition to AIFRS is included in Note 2 to this report. 

 

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies 

Likely developments in the operations of the economic entity and the expected results of those operations in 

future financial years have not been included in this report as the inclusion of such information is likely to 

result in unreasonable prejudice to the economic entity 

 

Environmental Issues 

The economic entity’s operations are regulated by the Mineral Resource Development Legislation in the 

Jurisdictions in which operates. The Company seeks always to comply with the letter and spirit of all relevant 

environmental legislation. 

 

Remuneration Report 

This report details the nature and amount of remuneration for each director of Rey Resources Limited and 

for the executives receiving the highest remuneration. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

The remuneration policy of Rey Resources Limited  has been designed to align director and executive

objectives with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration component and 

offering specific long-term incentives based on key performance areas affecting the economic entity’s 

financial results. The board of Rey Resources Limited  believes the remuneration policy to be appropriate 

and effective in its ability to attract and retain the best executives and directors to run and manage the 

economic entity, as well as create goal congruence between directors, executives and shareholders. 

The board’s policy for determining the nature and amount of remuneration for board members and senior 

executives of the economic entity is as follows: 

• The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for the executive directors and other senior 

executives, was developed by the remuneration committee and approved by the board after seeking 

professional advice from independent external consultants. 

• All executives receive a base salary (which is based on factors such as length of service and

experience) and superannuation. 

• The remuneration committee reviews executive packages annually by reference to the economic 

entity’s performance, executive performance and comparable information from industry sectors. 
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Share Transactions of Directors 

Shares Options  

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect 

Jose Bahamondes 

(Alt. Alan Humphris) 

 

5,020,000 

 

5,000,000 

 

3,000,000 

 

- 

Alan Humphris 2,816,500 180,000 500,000 - 

Bruce Preston 3,020,000 766,500 - 7,000,000 

Arun Jagatramka * - 14,000,000 - 3,180,000 

Julian Ludowici 1,030,000 3,157,858 3,000,000 4,000,000 

Peter Gower - - 1,000,000 - 

* Mr. Jagatramka is a Director and a major shareholder of Gujarat NRE Coke Ltd, which company holds 

14,000,000 shares and 3,180,000 options in Rey Resources Limited. At the Annual General Meeting a 

resolution will be put for the issue of a further 4,830,658 options to Gujarat NRE Coke Ltd. 

 

The direct, indirect and beneficial holdings of directors and their director-related entities in the share and 

share options of the parent company as at 30 June 2006 were: 

Shares direct : 11,886,500 fully paid ordinary shares, Indirect shares 23,104,358 

Shares options direct:  7,500,000, shares option indirect: 14,180,000 

 

Director’s Remuneration 

 

Director Director 

Fees 

Other 

Fees 

Super Options 

 

Shares 

 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Jose Bahamondes 

(Alt. Alan Humphris) 

 62,593 Nil Nil Nil 62,593 

Alan Humphris 20,418 48,900 Nil Nil Nil 69,318 

Bruce Preston  125,455 Nil Nil Nil 125,455 

Arun Jagatramka 2,083  Nil Nil Nil 2,083 

Julian Ludowici  118,121 Nil Nil Nil 118,121 

Peter Gower 2,083  Nil Nil Nil 2,083 

 24,584 355,069 - - - 379,653 

 

Employment contracts of directors and senior executives 

The employment conditions of the Chairman, Mr. Julian Ludowici, the managing director, Mr. Bruce Preston,

Mr. Jose Bahamondes and Alan Humphris are formalised in contracts of employment. The managing 

director is a permanent employees of Rey Resources Limited and is employed under a three-year contract, 

with a 3 month notice period which commenced on 15
th
 March 2004  and expires on 15

th
 March 2007. 
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Meetings of Directors 

During the year ended 30 June 2006, there were 16 directors’ meetings held. 

 

Attendance at directors’ meetings by the individual directors is as follows: 

 

 No. of meetings No. of 

 held while a meetings 

 director attended 

Name of director 

Julian Ludowici 16 16 

Bruce Clement Preston 15 15 

Jose Agustin Bahamondes 15 14     

Alan Humphris 15 15 

Peter John Gower 1 1 

Arun Kumar Jagatramka                                                                           1                                0 

 

The Board met twice in it’s capacity of a remuneration Committee. At that stage Mr Gower and Mr. 
Jagatramka had not become members 

There were also 2 audit committee meetings held during the 2006 financial year. 

 

Attendance at audit committee’s meetings by the individual director member is as follows: 

 

 No. of meetings No. of 

 held while a meetings 

 committee member attended 

Name of Member 

Jose Agustin Bahamondes 1 1    

Alan Humphris 2 2 

Peter John Gower                                                                                     1                                1 

 

Options 

At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Rey Resources Limited  under option are as 

follows: 

Grant Date Date of Expiry Exercise Price Number under Option 

25/05/05 31/12/07 0.20 c 5,000,050 

25/05/05 31/12/07 0.20 c 12,000,000 

29/05/06 31/12/07 0.20 c 1,325,000 

29/05/06 31/12/07 0.20 c 4,000,000 

29/05/06 31/12/09 0.20 c 4,000,000 

29/05/06 31/12/07 0.20 c 19,686,823 

   46,011,873 

No person entitled to exercise the option had or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any 

share issue of any other body corporate. 
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Proceedings on Behalf of Company 

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene in 

any proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the 

company for all or any part of those proceedings. 

The company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 

 

Non-audit Services 

The board of directors, in accordance with advice from the audit committee, is satisfied that the provision 

of non-audit services during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors 

imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors are satisfied that the services disclosed below did not 

compromise the external auditor’s independence for the following reasons: 

• all non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the audit committee prior to commencement to 

ensure they do not adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and 

• the nature of the services provided do not compromise the general principles relating to auditor 

independence as set out in the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and CPA Australia’s 

Professional Statement F1: Professional Independence. 

The following fees for non-audit services were paid/payable to the external auditors during the year ended 

30 June 2006: 

 $  

Taxation services 10,000  

Due diligence investigations 6,000  

 16,000  

 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2006 has been received and can 

be found on page 23 of the directors’ report. 

 

Rounding of Amounts 

The company is an entity to which ASIC Class Order 98/100 applies and, accordingly, amounts in the 

financial statements and directors’ report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars. 

 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 

 

Julian Ludowici 

Director 

Dated this 29
th
 day of September 2006 
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

 UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 

 TO THE DIRECTORS OF REY RESOURCES LIMITED 

 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2006 there have 

been: 

i. no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 

2001 in relation to the audit; and 

ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

Hall Chadwick 

Level 29, 31 Market Street 

Sydney NSW 2000 

 

 

Robert Elliott 

Partner 

Dated: September 2006 

 

 



Rey Resources Limited  ABN 84 108 003 890 

And Controlled entities 

 24 

 

 

 

INCOME STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

Revenue  3 40,598 22 40,597 1,531 

Office Supplies and Expenses  (169,378) (50,370) (157,820) (29,702) 

Mining Tenements Expenditure  (137,293) (72,580) (76,999) (11,780) 

Professional and Consulting Fees  (377,904) (486,826) (282,031) (463,417) 

Employee benefits expense  (256,533) (186,866) (175,080) (186,866) 

Depreciation and amortisation expense  (3,790) (1,421) (3,625) (836) 

Other expenses from ordinary activities  (89,591) (69,077) (67,155) (35,967) 

(Loss) from ordinary activities before 

income tax expense 

4 (993,891) (867,118) (722,113) (727,037) 

Income tax expense relating to ordinary 

activities 

5 - - - - 

(Loss) from ordinary activities after 

related income tax expense 

  

(993,891) 

 

(867,118) 

 

(722,113) 

 

(727,037) 

  - - - - 

Net (loss) attributable to members of the 

parent company 

 

2 

 

(993,891) 

 

(867,118) 

 

(722,113) 

 

(727,037) 

      

      

      

Basic earnings per share (cents per 

share) 

7 (1.84) (8.74) (1.34) (7.32) 

Diluted earnings per share (cents per 

share) 

7 (1.35) (3.83) (0.98) (3.21) 

      

      

      

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2006 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

ASSETS      

CURRENT ASSETS      

Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,009,693 465,432 2,991,402 464,114 

Trade and other receivables 9 66,009 11,872 1,665,800 819,679 

Financial  assets 10 17,622 - 17,622 - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  3,093,324 477,304 4,674,824 1,283,793 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

Property, plant and equipment 12 17,577 12,193 14,254 11,238 

Other non-current assets 13 1,800,857 1,250,721 685,264 635,265 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  1,818,434 1,262,914 699,518 646,503 

TOTAL ASSETS  4,911,758 1,740,218 5,374,342 1,930,296 

CURRENT LIABILITIES      

Trade and other payables 14 387,291 475,132 384,469 473,402 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  387,291 475,132 384,469 473,402 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  387,291 475,132 384,469 473,402 

NET ASSETS  4,524,467 1,265,086 4,989,873 1,456,894 

EQUITY      

Issued capital 16 6,439,023 2,185,751 6,439,023 2,183,931 

Accumulated losses  (1,914,556) (920,665) (1,449,150) (727,037) 

TOTAL EQUITY  4,524,467 1,265,086 4,989,873 1,456,894 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

     

Economic Entity     

  Share Capital   

 Note  Ordinary  Accumulated 

losses 

Total 

   $  $ $ 

Balance at 1 July 2004   10   10 

Shares issued during the year   2,185,741   2,185,741 

Loss attributable to members of parent 

company 

   

 

  

(920,665) 

 

(920,665) 

Balance at 30 June 2005   2,185,751  (920,665) 1,265,086 

Shares issued during the year   4,457,709   4,457,709 

Less: Transaction Costs   (204,437)   (204,437) 

Loss attributable to members of parent 

company 

     

(993,891) 

 

(993,891) 

Balance at 30 June 2006   6,439,023  (1,914,556) 4,524,467 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

    

Parent Entity    

   Share Capital  

 Note Ordinary  Accumulated 

losses 

Total  

  $  $ $ 

Balance at 1 July 2004  10   10 

Shares issued during the year  2,183,921   2,183,921 

Loss attributable to members of parent 

company  

    

(727,037) 

 

(727,037) 

Balance at 30 June 2005  2,183,931  (727,037) 1,456,894 

Shares issued during the year  4,457,709   4,457,709 

Less: Transaction Costs   (202,617)   (202,617) 

Loss attributable to members of parent 

company 

    

(722,113) 

 

(722,113) 

Balance at 30 June 2006  6,439,023  (1,449,150) 4,989,873 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 Note Economic Entity 

 

Parent Entity 

 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES 

     

Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,137,120) (402,437) (818,340) (251,606) 

Interest received  40,598 22 40,597 - 

Interest and costs of finance paid  - (1,187) - (223) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 

operating activities 

20(a) (1,096,522) (403,602) (777,743) (251,829) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 

ACTIVITIES 

     

Purchase of property, plant and 

equipment 

 (9,174) (12,074) (6,641) (12,074) 

Purchase of Exploration mining 

tenements 

 (550,136) (230,457) (888,421) (379,200) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 

investing activities 

 (559,310) (242,531) (895,062) (391,274) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 

ACTIVITIES 

     

Proceeds from issue of shares  4,200,093 1,107,207 4,200,093 1,107,207 

Net cash provided by (used in) 

financing activities 

 4,200,093 1,107,207 4,200,093 1,107,207 

Net increase in cash held  2,544,261 461,074 2,527,288 464,104 

Cash at beginning of financial year   465,432 4,358 464,114 10 

Cash at end of financial year 8 3,009,693 465,432 2,991,402 464,114 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with 

Australian Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements 

of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. 

The financial report covers the economic entity of Rey Resources Limited and controlled entities, and Rey 

Resources Limited as an individual parent entity. Rey Resources Limited is a listed public company, 

incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

The financial report of Rey Resources Limited and controlled entities, and Rey Resources Limited as an 

individual parent entity comply with all Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting 

Standards (AIFRS) in their entirety. 

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the economic entity in the 

preparation of the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless 

otherwise stated. 

Basis of Preparation 

First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards  

Rey Resources Limited and controlled entities, and Rey Resources Limited as an individual parent entity 

have prepared financial statements in accordance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial 

Reporting Standards (AIFRS) from 1 July 2005. 

In accordance with the requirements of AASB 1: First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to 

International Financial Reporting Standards, adjustments to the parent entity and consolidated entity 

accounts resulting from the introduction of AIFRS have been applied retrospectively to 2005 comparative 

figures excluding cases where optional exemptions available under AASB 1 have been applied. These 

consolidated accounts are the first financial statements of Rey Resources Limited to be prepared in 

accordance with Australian equivalents to IFRS. 

The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all years presented. The parent 

and consolidated entities have however elected to adopt the exemptions available under AASB 1 relating 

to AASB 132: Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, and AASB 139: Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement.  

Reconciliations of the transition from previous Australian GAAP to AIFRS have been included in Note 2 to 

this report. 

Reporting Basis and Conventions 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by 

the revaluation of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair 

value basis of accounting has been applied. 

Accounting Policies 

a. Principles of Consolidation 

 A controlled entity is any entity Rey Resources Limited has the power to control the financial and 

operating policies of so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

 A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 11 to the financial statements. All controlled entities 

have a June financial year-end. 

 All inter-company balances and transactions between entities in the economic entity, including any 

unrealised profits or losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of 

subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistencies with those policies 

applied by the parent entity. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 Where controlled entities have entered or left the economic entity during the year, their operating  

results have been included/excluded from the date control was obtained or until the date control 

ceased.  

 

b. Income Tax 

 The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any non-

assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or are 

substantially enacted by the balance sheet date. 

 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary 

differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 

financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an 

asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or 

taxable profit or loss.  

 Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 

realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it 

relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted 

directly against equity. 

 Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will 

be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

 The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the 

assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation 

that the economic entity will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be 

realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law. 

c. Plant and equipment 

 Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis. 

 The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in 

excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the 

basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the asset’s employment and 

subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in 

determining recoverable amounts. 

 The cost of fixed assets constructed within the economic entity includes the cost of materials, direct 

labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 

flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 

maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are 

incurred. 

 Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to a 

revaluation reserve in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are 

charged against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to the income 

statement. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount 

of the asset charged to the income statement and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is 

transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

  

  

d. Depreciation 

 The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including building and capitalised lease assets, but 

excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives to the 

economic entity commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold 

improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the 

estimated useful lives of the improvements. 

 The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 

 Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate 

 Plant and equipment 20 – 40 % 

 Furniture & Fitting 10 – 30 % 

 Accounting Software 20 - 40 % 

 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 

balance sheet date. 

 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. 

These gains and losses are included in the income statement. When revalued assets are sold, 

amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained 

earnings. 

e. Exploration and Development Expenditure 

 Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each 

identifiable area of interest. These costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are 

expected to be recouped through the successful development of the area or where activities in the 

area have not yet reached a stage that permits reasonable assessment of the existence of 

economically recoverable reserves. 

 Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in the year in 

which the decision to abandon the area is made.  

 A regular review is undertaken of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of 

continuing to carry forward costs in relation to that area of interest. 

 Costs of the site restoration are provided over the life of the facility from when exploration 

commences and are included in the costs of that stage. Site restoration costs include the 

dismantling and removal of mining plants, equipment and building structures, waste 

removal, and rehabilitation of the site in accordance with clauses of the mining permits. 

Such costs have been determined using estimates of future costs, current legal 

requirements and technology on an undiscounted basis 

 Any changes in the estimates for costs are accounted on a prospective basis. In 

determining the costs of site restoration, there is uncertainty regarding the nature and 

extent of the restoration due to community expectations and future legislation. Accordingly 

the costs have been determined on the basis that the restoration will be completed within 

one year of abandoning the site. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

f. Leases 

 Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of 

the asset, but not the legal ownership that is transferred to entities in the economic entity, are 

classified as finance leases.  

 Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts 

equal to the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, 

including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of 

the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period. 

 Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful 

lives or the lease term.  

 Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the 

lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.  

 Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-

line basis over the life of the lease term.  

 

g. Financial Instruments 

 Recognition 

 Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, 

when the related contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these 

instruments are measured as set out below. 

 Available-for-sale financial assets  

 Available-for-sale financial assets include any financial assets not included in the above categories. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are reflected at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising 

from changes in fair value are taken directly to equity.  

 Impairment  

 At each reporting date, the group assess whether there is objective evidence that a financial 

instrument has been impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged 

decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.  

h. Impairment of Assets 

 At each reporting date, the group reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an 

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less 

costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s 

carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement. 

 Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives.  

 Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group 

estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

i. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances 

 Functional and presentation currency 

 The functional currency of each of the group’s entities is measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements 

are presented in Australian dollars which is the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency. 

 

 Transaction and balances 

 Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the 

year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at 

the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are 

reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined. 

 Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the income 

statement, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge. 

 Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in 

equity to the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity, otherwise the exchange 

difference is recognised in the income statement. 

 Group companies 

 The financial results and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from 

the group’s presentation currency are translated as follows: 

 —assets and liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date; 

 —income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period; and 

 —retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. 

 Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are transferred directly to the 

group’s foreign currency translation reserve in the balance sheet. These differences are recognised 

in the income statement in the period in which the operation is disposed. 

  

j. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term 

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank 

overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet. 

k. Revenue 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to customers. 

 Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates 

applicable to the financial assets. 

 All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in income in the period in which they are incurred. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

l. Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances 

the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the 

expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.  

 Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST 

component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

 

m. Comparative Figures 

 When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to 

changes in presentation for the current financial year.  

n. Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

 Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST 

component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

o. Comparative Figures 

 When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to 

changes in presentation for the current financial year.  

 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

 The directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial report based on 

historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable 

expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both 

externally and within the group. 

 Key Estimates — Impairment 

 The group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the 

group that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable 

amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable 

amounts incorporate a number of key estimates. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 2: FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 
REPORTING STANDARDS 

 

(a) Reconciliation of equity at 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005 

 

On adoption of the new AIFRS standards, there were no quantitative differences between equity 
presented under AIFRS to that previously presented under AGAAP. 

 

(b) Reconciliation of net loss for the year ended 30 June 2005 

 

On adoption of the new AIFRS standards, there were no quantitative differences between net 
loss presented under AIFRS to that previously presented under AGAAP. 

 

 

NOTE 3: REVENUE 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

Operating activities      

— interest received   40,598 22 40,597 - 

— other revenue      1,531 

Total Revenue   40,598 22 40,597 1,531 

 

 

NOTE 4: LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

a. Expenses      

  Depreciation of Non-Current 

Assets 

 (3,790) (1,421) (3,625) (836) 

 Foreign currency translation 

gain (losses ) 

  

(14,339) 

  

738 

 

 Rental expense on operating 

leases  

 (32,735) (18,790) (37,735) (18,790) 

 

 Exploration expenditure   (137,293) (72,580) (76,999) (11,780) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 5: INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

a. The components of tax expense 

comprise: 

     

 Deferred tax   298,167 260,135 216,633 218,111 

 Deferred tax assest not brought to 

account  

 (298,167) (260,135) (216,633) (218,111) 

   - - - - 

b. The prima facie tax on profit from 

ordinary activities before income tax 

is reconciled to the income tax as 

follows: 

  

 

(298,167) 

 

 

(260,135) 

 

 

(216,633) 

 

 

(218,111) 

Prima facie tax payable on profit from 

ordinary activities before income tax at 

30% (2005: 30%)  

  

 

(298,167) 

 

 

(260,135) 

 

 

(216,633) 

 

 

(218,111) 

 Add:       

 Tax effect of:       

 — Deferred tax assest not 

brought to account 

 298,167 260,135 216,633 218,111 

 Income tax attributable to entity  - - - - 

       

 

 

NOTE 6: AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 

  Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

Remuneration of the auditor of the 

parent entity for: 

     

— auditing or reviewing the 

financial report 

 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 

— taxation services  10,000 - 10,000 - 

— due diligence services  6,000 - 6,000 - 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 7: EARNINGS PER SHARE 

   Economic Entity 

   2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

a. Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss    

 Profit/ (Loss)  (993,891) (867,118) 

 Earnings used to calculate basic and diluted EPS  (993,891) (867,118) 

     

   No. No. 

b. Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

during the year used in calculating basic EPS 

 53,884,370 9,926,758 

 Weighted average number of options outstanding  19,543,552 12,735,779 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

during the year used in calculating dilutive EPS 

 73,427,922 22,662,537 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 8: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

Cash at bank and in hand  3,009,693 15,432 2,991,402 14,114 

Short-term bank deposits  - 450,000 - 450,000 

  3,009,693 465,432 2,991,402 464,114 

      

Reconciliation of cash      

Cash at the end of the financial year 

as shown in the cash flow statement is 

reconciled to items in the balance 

sheet as follows: 

   

 

 

  

 

 

Cash and cash equivalents  3,009,693 465,432 2,991,402 464,114 

  3,009,693 465,432 2,991,402 464,114 

 

 

NOTE 9: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

CURRENT      

Other receivables  66,009 11,872 7,700 - 

Amounts receivable from:      

— Wholly-owned subsidiaries  - -  1,658,100 819,679 

  66,009 11,872 1,665,800 819,679 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 10: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

Available-for-sale financial assets  10a 17,622 - 17,622 - 

      

      

a. Available-for-sale Financial 

Assets Comprise 

     

 Unlisted investments, at cost      

 — units in unit trusts  17,622 - 17,622 - 

 Total available-for-sale financial 

assets  

 17,622 - 17.622 - 

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise investments in the ordinary issued capital of various entities. 

There are no fixed returns or fixed maturity date attached to these investments. 

 

b. Units in Unit Trusts   Economic Entity Parent Entity 

 Certain controlled entities hold 

interests in the following unit 

trusts:  

 2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

   BT Financial Group      

  The trust’s principal 

activities are the cash 

management and 

distribute into unit 

holders in Australia 

     

  Investment at cost  16,528   -  16,528 - 

  Percentage ownership 

100% (2005: n/a) 

 16,528 - 16,528 - 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 11: CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

a. Controlled Entities Consolidated    

  Country of Incorporation Percentage Owned (%)* 

   2006 2005 

 Parent Entity:    

 Rey Resources Limited Australia 100% 100% 

 Ultimate Parent Entity:    

 Rey Resources Limited Australia 100% 100% 

     

 Subsidiaries of Rey Resources Limted :    

 Blackfin Pty.Limited Australia 100% 100% 

 Rey Investments Chile Limitada Chile 100% 100% 

 Rey Resources Peru S.A. Peru 100% 100% 

 * Percentage of voting power is in proportion to ownership 

 

b. Acquisition of Controlled Entities 

 On 17 August 2004 the parent entity acquired 100% of Blackfin Pty Ltd. and is entitled to all profits 

earned from 17 August 2004 for a purchase consideration of $518,490. 

On 27 April 2004 the parent entity acquired 100% of Rey Investment Chile Limitada and Rey 

Resources Peru S.A. for a total of $532,369.40 and is entitled to 100% of profit earned from 27 April 

2004. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 12: PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT      

Furniture and Equipment      

At cost  6,020 9,476 6,020 9,476 

Accumulated depreciation  (715) (372) (715) (372) 

Accumulated impairment losses      

  5,305 9,104 5,305 9,104 

Plant and equipment:      

At cost  15,581 4,138 11,508 2.598 

Accumulated depreciation  (4,199) (1,049) (3,449) (464) 

  11,382 3,089 8,059 2,134 

Accounting Software      

At cost  1,187 - 1,187 - 

Accumulated depreciation  (297) - (297) - 

  890  890  

Total plant and equipment  17,577 12.193 14,254 11,238 

 

a. Movements in Carrying Amounts 

 Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between 

the beginning and the end of the current financial year 

 Furniture 

And 

Fittings 

 Plant and 

Equipment  

 Accounting 

Software 

Total 

 $  $  $ $ 

Economic Entity:       

Balance at the beginning of year 9,104  3,089  - 12,193 

Additions (3,456)  11,443  1,187 9,174 

Depreciation expense (343)  (3,150)  (297) (3,790) 

Carrying amount at the end of year 5,305  11,382  890 17,577 

       

Parent Entity:       

Balance at the beginning of year 9,104  2,134  - 11,238 

Additions (3,456)  8,910  1,187 6,641 

Depreciation expense (343)  (2,985)  (297) (3,625) 

Carrying amount at the end of year 5,305  8,059  890 14,254 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 13: OTHER ASSETS 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

NON- CURRENT      

Mining Tenements – at cost  1,150,002 1,108,401 - - 

Exploration Expenditure – at cost  635,855 127,320 - - 

Investment in subsidiaries  - - 670,264 620,265 

Shares in Listed entities  15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

  1,800,857 1,250,721 685,264 635,265 

The ultimate recoupment of balances carried forward in relation to areas of interest still in the 

Exploration or valuation phase is dependent on successful development. And commercial 
exploitation, or alternatively sale of the respective areas. 

 

 

NOTE 14: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 Note Economic Entity Parent Entity 

  2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

CURRENT      

Unsecured liabilities      

Trade payables  95,344 74,302 92,522 74,302 

Sundry payables and accrued 

expenses 

 291,947 400,830 291,947 399,100 

  387,291 475,132 384,469 473,402 

 

 

 

NOTE 15: TAX 

  Economic Entity Parent Entity 

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the 

benefits of which will only be realised if 

The conditions for deductibility set out in Note (1) 

occur 

 2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

 - Temporary Difference  - - - - 

 - Tax losses:      

                       - Operation losses  558,302 260,135 434,744 218,111 

  558,302 260,135 434,744 218,111 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 16: ISSUED CAPITAL 

 Economic Entity Parent Entity 

 2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

72,344,499 (2005: 45,280,954) fully paid ordinary 

shares 

6,439,023 2,185,751 6,439,023 2,183,931 

 6,439,023 2,185,751 6,439,023 2,183,931 

     

The company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital and issued shares do not have a par 

value. 

   

 Economic Entity Parent Entity 

 2006 

No. 

2005 

No. 

2006 

No. 

2005 

No. 

a. Ordinary shares     

 At the beginning of reporting period 45,280,954 100 45,280,954 100 

 Shares issued during the year     

 - 27 April 2004 - 13,000,00 - 13,000,00 

 - 27 April 2004 - 7,000,000 - 7,000,000 

 - 17 August 2004 - 12,660,976 - 12,660,076 

 - January 2005 - 4,500,050 - 4,500,050 

 - 22 February 2005 - 1,003,828 - 1,003,828 

 - 03 February 2005 - 1,066,000 - 1,066,000 

 - 22 March 2005 - 200,000 - 200,000 

 - 22 March 2005 - 5,350,000 - 5,350,000 

 - 16 May 2005 -      500,000 - 500,000 

 - 27 October 2005 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 - 

 - 27 October 2005 550,000 - 550,000 - 

 - 28 May 2006 16,513,545 - 16,513,545 - 

 At reporting date 72,344,499 45,280,954 72,344,499 45,280,954 

      

 At the shareholders meetings each ordinary 

share is entitled to one vote when a poll is 

called, otherwise each shareholder has one 

vote on a show of hands. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 17: RESERVES 

a. Capital Profits Reserve  

 The capital profits reserve records non-taxable profits on sale of investments. 

b. Asset Revaluation Reserve  

 The asset revaluation reserve records revaluations of non-current assets. Under certain 

circumstances dividends can be declared from this reserve.  

c. Asset Realisation Reserve 

 The asset realisation reserve records realised gains on sale of non-current assets. 

d. Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 

 The foreign currency translation reserve records exchange differences arising on translation of a 

foreign controlled subsidiary. 

e. General Reserve  

 The general reserve records funds set aside for future expansion of the economic entity. 

f. Option Reserve 

 The option reserve records items recognised as expenses on valuation of employee share options. 

g. Financial Assets Reserve 

 The financial assets reserve records revaluation of financial assets. 

h. Hedge Reserve  

 The hedge reserve records revaluations of items designated as hedges. 

 

 

 

NOTE 18: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 

There are no contingent liabilities or contingent assets at the end of the financial year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

NOTE 19: SEGMENT REPORTING                             

                                                           

Primary Reporting                                                    Australia                                 South America                     Eliminations                     Economic Entity             

         2006         2005                      2006            2005                   2006            2005              2006                 2005 

  

Geographical Segments 

Revenue       

Other Income                                                     40,598             22                         -                     -                                                                 40,598               22                                    

Total Sales Revenue                                          40,598             22                                                                                                                 40,598               22 

 

Total Revenue 

RESULT 

Segment Result                                              (787,383)       (813,177)            (206,508)          (53,941)                                                (993,891)        (867,118) 

 

Loss from ordinary from ordinary                    

Activities after income tax expenses              (787,383)       (813,177)             (206,508)          (53,941)                                                 (993,891)      (867,118) 

 

 

 

 

The economic entity’s business segments are within one business segment, being mining exploration 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

   

NOTE 19: SEGMENT REPORTING                             

                                                           

                                                                                   Australia                                 South America                     Eliminations                     Economic Entity             

         2006         2005                      2006            2005                   2006            2005               2006              2005 

ASSETS 

Segment assets                                             6,120,403       697,452              449,454         779,484           (1,658,099)   263,283          4,911,758       1,740,219 

Total Assets                                                                                                                                                                                                4,911,758       1,740,219 

LIABILITIES 

Segment liabilities                                           1,335,477           5,063             706,472       206,786              (1,654,658)    263,283            387,291          475,132 

Total Liabilities                                                                                                                                                                                                387,291          475,132 

OTHER 

Acquisitions of non-current 

segment assets                                                 6,641             12,074                   2,533                                                                                    9,174            12,074 

Depreciation and amortisation of 

 segment assets                                                 3,790               1.421                                                                                                                3,790             1,421 

Secondary reporting – Business segments 

.Accounting Policies :  Segment revenues and expenses are those directly attributable to the segments and include any joint revenue and expenses where a 

reasonable basis of allocation exists. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment and consist principally of cash, receivable, inventories, intangibles and 

property, plant and equipment, net allowances and accumulated depreciation and amortisation. While most such assets can be directly attributed to individual 

segments, the carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or more segments is allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis. Segment liabilities 

consist principally of accounts payable,  accrued expenses. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred income taxes. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

NOTE 20: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

 Economic Entity Parent Entity 

 2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

a. Reconciliation of Cash Flow from 

Operations with Loss after Income Tax 

    

 Loss after income tax (993,891) (867,118) (722,113) (727,037) 

 Add(less) items classified as financing or 

investing 

    

  Interest received - 22 - - 

  Interest and finance costs paid - (1,187) - (222) 

  Expenses paid by issue of shares 55,000 - 55,000 - 

 Activities and non cash items:     

  Depreciation charged 3,790 1,421 3,625 836 

  Foreign exchange (1,821)    

 Net cash expended on Operating activities 

before changes in assets and liabilities 

(936,922) (866,862) (663,488) (726,423) 

 Add/less effect of change in operating 

assets and liabilities: 

    

  Increase/decrease in other debtors (115,793) (11,872) (60,057) - 

  (Increase)/decrease in trade and 

term receivables  

- - - - 

  Increase/ decrease in trade and 

other creditors  

(43,807) 475,132 (54,198) 474,594 

  Increase/(decrease) in provisions     

  Net cash flow provided by  (used 

in) operating activities 

(1,096,522) (403,602) (777,743) (251,829) 

b. Non-cash Financing and Investing 

Activities 

    

  Share issue     

  On 17 August 2004 shares were issued to the value of $518,490 for the purchase of  

Blackfin Pty Ltimited. The share issue was based on the fair value of the company which 

was determined by an independent valuation of Rey Resources Limited prior to the 

purchase. 

On 27 April 2004 shares were issued to the value of  $532,369.40 for the purchase of Rey 

Investment Chile Limitada and Rey Resources Peru S.A. The shares issue was based on 

the fair value of the company which was determined by an independent valuation  prior to 

the purchase. 

 

NOTE 21: EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

• On 20 August 2006 1,000,000 options were issued to Dr. Gower. On  16 August 2006,  550,000 options 

were issued to The Company’s Chilean Exploration staff.  

• On 26 September 2006 the Company entered into a binding agreement with Gujarat NRE Resources 

Ltd. to explore the Company’s oil tenements as detailed in the Managing Director’s report 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 22: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 Economic 

Entity 

Economic 

Entity 

Parent 

Entity 

Parent 

Entity 

 Note 2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

2006 

$ 

2005 

$ 

A consulting firm, Preston Consulting, controlled by 

Mr. Bruce Preston, a director, provided consulting 

services during the year under normal commercial 

terms and conditions 

Paid in cash 

Paid as securities 

Accrued 

  

 

 

 

125,455 

- 

- 

 

 

 

 

75,417 

50,000 

108,750 

 

 

 

 

125,455 

- 

- 

 

 

 

 

75,417 

50,000 

108,750 

Mr. Julian Kinnear Ludowici, a director provided 

services during the year and was paid 

superannuation under normal commercial terms and 

conditions 

Paid in cash 

Paid as securities 

Accrued 

  

 

 

 

118,121 

- 

- 

 

 

 

 

51,338 

40,383 

75,000 

 

 

 

 

118,121 

- 

- 

 

 

 

 

51,338 

40,383 

75,000 

Mr. Jose Agustin Bahamondes, a Chilean based 

director, provided consulting services during the year 

under normal commercial terms and conditions 

Paid in cash 

Paid as securities 

Accrued 

  

 

 

62,593 

- 

- 

 

 

 

66,407 

- 

25,755 

 

 

 

62,593 

- 

- 

 

 

 

66,407 

- 

25,755 

Mr. Tim Cooper a former director, provided 

consulting services during the year under normal 

commercial terms and conditions 

Paid in cash 

Paid as securities 

Accrued 

  

- 

- 

- 

 

5,000 

5,000 

10,000 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

5,000 

5,000 

10,000 

A consulting firm, Balmoral Capital Pty.Ltd. controlled 

by Mr. Allan Humphris, a director, provided 

consulting services during the year under normal 

commercial terms and conditions 

Paid in cash 

Paid as securities 

Accrued 

  

 

 

65,568 

- 

- 

 

 

 

22,800 

5,000 

10,000 

 

 

 

65,568 

- 

- 

 

 

 

22,800 

5,000 

10,000 

The above transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more 

favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 23: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

a) Terms, conditions and accounting policies 

The entity’s accounting policies, including the terms and conditions of each class of financial assets, 

financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out in Note 1. 

 

b) Interest Rate Risk 

The economic entity’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate for 

classes and financial liabilities is set out below: 

                                       Weight          Floating                                              More              Non-                 TOTAL 

                                       Average        Interest     1 year or     1 to 5              than 5           interest 

                                        Interest         rate           less              years           years            bearings 

                                         Rate               $                  $                 $                  $                     $                        $ 

 

2006 

Financial Assets 

Cash assets                   5.45%          3,009,693           -               -                   -                      -                3,009,693 

Trade & Other Receivables                    -                     -               -                   -                    66,009              66,009                                  

Financial asset                5.45%             17,622           -              -                    -                       -                     17,622                                                           

                                                             3,027,315        -               -                    -                     66,009       3,093,324 

 

Financial liabilities 

Trade & Other Payables                               -               -                 -                  -                   387,291           387,291 

                                                                                                                                                387,291           387,291 

 

 

2005 

Financial Assets 

Cash assets                    5.30%             15,432      450,000           -                   -                       -                  465,432 

Trade & Other Receivables                          -                -                -                 -                      11,872              11,872 

                                                                 15,432     450,000         -                -                        11,872           477,304                                          

Financial liabilities 

Trade & Other Payables                               -               -                 -                  -                   475,132           475,132 

                                                                                                                                                475,132          475,132 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006 

 

NOTE 23: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

c) Credit Risk 

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted. 

 

d) Net Fair value 

The aggregate net fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at balance date are represented by the 

carrying amounts in the above schedule. 

The net fair value of  financial liabilities are based on the following assumptions. 

Cash and short term investment: The carrying amount approximates fair values because of their short term 

maturity. 

Receivable: The carrying amount represents fair value. 

Financial assets: The carrying amount approximates fair values because of their short term maturity. 

 

 

NOTE 24: COMPANY DETAILS 

The registered office of the company and principal place of business of the company is: 

 Rey Resources Limited 

Level 2, 60 Clarence Street 

Sydney  NSW 2000 
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 

The directors of the company declare that: 

1. the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 14 to 50, are in accordance with the 

Corporations Act 2001 and: 

 a. comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and 

 b. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of the performance 

for the year ended on that date of the company and economic entity; 

2. in the director’s opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to 

pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

Director 

 

 

 

Mr. Julian Kinnear Ludowici 

Dated this 29
th 
day of September 2006 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF REY RESOURCES LIMITED 

LISTED PUBLIC COMPANY 

Scope 

The financial report and directors’ responsibility 

The financial report comprises the income statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash 

flow statement, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for Rey 

Resources Limited ( the company) and Rey Resources Limited (the consolidated entity), for the year 

ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity comprises both the company and the entities it controlled 

during that year. 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the 

financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect 

fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report. 

Audit Approach 

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the company. Our 

audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to provide reasonable 

assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is 

influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgment, selective testing, the inherent limitations of 

internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit 

cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected. 

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in 

accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting Standards and other 

mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding 

of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position, and of their performance as represented 

by the results of their operations and cash flows. 

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included: 

— examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial report, and 

— assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the 

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors. 

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when 

determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on 

internal controls. 

Independence 

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional 

ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001. 

In accordance with ASIC Class Order 05/83, we declare to the best of our knowledge and belief that the 

auditor’s independence declaration set out on page 23 of the financial report has not changed as at the 

date of providing our audit opinion. 

Audit Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial report of Rey Resources Limited Listed Public Limited s in accordance with: 

a. the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

 i. giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 

30 June 2006 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and 

 ii. complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF REY RESOURCES LIMITED 

LISTED PUBLIC COMPANY 

and 

b. other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia. 

Hall Chadwick 

Level 29, 31 Market Street 

Sydney NSW 2000 

 

 

Robert Elliott 

 

Date  September 2006 
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

 

Additional information required by the Australian Stock exchange and not shown elsewhere in this report as 
follows. The information is current as at 14

th
. September 2006. 

a) Distribution of equity securities 

 

The number of shareholders, by size of holding, in each class of share are 

              Ordinary Shares 

      Number of Holders Number of Shares 

      1 - 1,000      215         91,229 

1,001 - 5,000      475     1,472,497 

 5,001 - 10,000      240    2,020,145 

10,001- 100,000      363               12,785,417 

100,001 and over        81  55,975,211  

Total                  1,374  72,344,499               

 

The number of shares holding less than a 

Marketable parcel of shares are:    450       579,792 

 

b) Twenty largest shareholders 

 

The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted shares are: 

              Listed Ordinary Shares 

               Number of Shares          Percentage of ordinary shares  

 

1. Gujarat NRE Coke Limited        14,000,000   19.35 

2. Jose Agustin Bahamondes          5,020,000     6.94 

3. Bruce Clement Preston            3,836,500     5.30 

4. Claudia Bahamondes           2,500,000     3.46 

5. John Paul Bahamondes           2,500,000     3.46 

6. Alan Humphris + Elizabeth Ann Humphris         2,266,500     3.13 

7. JBBM Pty Ltd ATF The Julian Ludowici Super Fund       2,140,000     2.96 

8. James McClements           1,709,180     2.36 

9. Unaval Nominees Pty Ltd          1,166,500     1.61 

10. Julian Kinnear Ludowici           1,030,000     1.42 

11. Bettina Margarete Ludowici             830,000     1.15 

12. JBBM Pty Ltd               801,424     1.11 

13. ANZ Nominees Limited              686,190     0.95 

14. Ryan Benettt               644,750     0.89 

15.Brian T Dolan               644,750                                     0.89 

16.JBBM Pty Ltd               620,328     0.86 

17. Royal Bank of Canada              550,000     0.76 

18. Finhide Pty Limited              500,000     0.69 

19. Jojeto Pty Ltd               500,000     0.69 

20. Lemuel Investment Limited                   500,000     0.69 

           42,446,122                                   58.67 
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c) Twenty largest options holders 

The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted options are: 

              Listed Options 

               Number of Options          Percentage of total options 

1. Bruce Clement Preston     6,025,000            15.23 

2. Gujarat NRE Coke Ltd     3,180,000              8.04 

3. Jose Agustin Bahamondes     3,000,000              7.58 

4. JBBM Pty Ltd      3,000,000              7.58 

5. Julian Kinnear Ludowici     3,000,000              7.58 

6. James McClements        1,709,180              4.32 

7. Unaval Nominees Pty Ltd        800,000              2.02 

8. Ying Wang         750,000              1.90 

9. Karema Capital Pty Ltd        700,000              1.77 

10. Ryan T Bennett         644,750              1.63 

11. Bryan T Dolan         644,750                1.63 

12. Finhide Pty Limited        500,000              1.26 

13. Gowrie Investments Pty Ltd        500,000              1.26 

14. Alan John Humphris+ Elizabeth Ann Humphris    500,000              1.26 

15. Jojeto Pty Ltd         500,000              1.26 

16. Coralco Pty Ltd         496,497              1.25 

17. Berne No 132 Nominees Pty Ltd       400,000              1.01 

18. Invia Custodian Pty Limited        400,000              1.01       

19. Donald Broadley Wright+ Robin Ruth Wright      300,000              0.76       

20. Royal Bank of Canada        275,000              0.69 

                                                                                27,325,177                                  69.07 

 

 

d) Voting rights 

All ordinary shares (whether fully paid or not) carry one vote per share without restriction 

 

 

e) Tenement Information  

 

Current interests and applications in tenements held by Rey Resources Limited and its subsidiaries as at 
14

th
  September 2006 : 
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Location/ Project Holder Tenement              Area Percent

Country

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1219 210 sq.kms 67.8% *

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1381 210 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1382 210 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1383 183 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1385 210 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1386 210 sq.kms 56.6%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1515 210 sq.kms 1.7%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1516 210 sq.kms 94.6%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1517 207 sq.kms 19.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1518 210 sq.kms 73.0% *

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1519 210 sq.kms 73.7%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1520 210 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1521 210 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1522 210 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1523 210 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1524 147 sq.kms 100.0%

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1525 198 sq.kms 59.8% *

WA / Australia Liveringa Blackfin E04/1529 210 sq.kms 59.8%

WA / Australia Liveringa Rey EPA10/04-5 4650 sq.kms 100.0% *

WA / Australia Liveringa Rey EPA11/04-5 5325 sq.kms 100.0% *

13650 sq.kms

WA / Australia Eradu Blackfin E70/2392 24 sq.kms 100% *

24 sq.kms

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H1 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H2 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H3 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H4 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H5 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H6 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H7 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H8 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H9 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H10 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H11 100 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H12 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H13 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H14 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H15 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H16 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Humito Rey Chile H17 100 ha 100%

4500 ha

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F1 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F2 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F3 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F4 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F5 300 ha 100%
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Location/ Project Holder Tenement              Area Percent

Country

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F6 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F7 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F8 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F9 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F10 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F11 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F12 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F13 300 ha 100% **
Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F14 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F15 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F16 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F17 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F18 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F19 50 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F20 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F21 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F22 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F23 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F24 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F25 300 ha 100% **

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F26 200 ha 100% **

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F27 200 ha 100% **

Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F28 200 ha 100% **
Copiapo/ Chile Fenix Rey Chile F29 300 ha 100% **

8050 ha

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T1 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T2 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T3 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T4 100 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T5 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T6 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T7 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T8 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T9 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T10 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Timon Rey Chile T11 200 ha 100%

2700 ha

Copiapo/ Chile Claudia Rey Chile C1 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Claudia Rey Chile C2 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Claudia Rey Chile C3 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Claudia Rey Chile C4 300 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Claudia Rey Chile C5 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Claudia Rey Chile C6 70 ha 100%

1370 ha
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Location/ Project Holder Tenement              Area Percent

Country

Copiapo/ Chile Julita Rey Chile J1 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Julita Rey Chile J2 200 ha 100%

Copiapo/ Chile Julita Rey Chile J3 91 ha 100%

491 ha

La Libertad/ Peru Kechua Rey Peru K1 400 ha 100%

La Libertad/ Peru Kechua Rey Peru K2 100 ha 100%

500 ha

Cajamarca/ Peru San Francisco Rey Peru SF1 100 ha 100%

100 ha

Full names for abbreviated names of tenement holders area as follow:

Blackfin    = Blackfin Pty Ltd

Rey         = Rey Resources Limited

Rey Chile  = Rey Investement Chile Limitada

Rey Peru  = Rey Resources Peru S.A.

E        = Exploration License (for minerals)

EPA     = Application for exploration Permit (for petroleum)

* Rey Resources tenement applications

** New claims

 


